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IN THE MATTER OF

KENNECOTT CORPORATION

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT AND SEC. 7 01"

THE CLAYTON ACT

Docket C-307/J Complaint, Sept. 19B/-Decision, Sept. , 1981

This consent order requires, among other things , a Stamford , Conn. , manufacturer
engaged in the production of various products , including fabric air filter bags
utilized in the control of industrial air pollution, to timely divest its

subsidiary, the FiJter Media Division

, "

FMD " in accordance with the terms of
the order. Pending such divestiture, the firm is required to operate its

prospective acquisition, National Filter Media, as a separately managed
eptity. The order further bars the company from certain acquisitions for a
period often years without prior Commission approval.

Appearances

For the Commission: Steven R. Newborn, Michael Antalics, Nancy
Markowitz and Virginia L. $nider.

For the respondent: Richard E.
Sullivan Cromwell New York City.

Carlton and Richard Lyons,

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission , having reason to believe that the
respondent, Kennecott Corporation CKennecott"), a corporation
subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission , has entered into an
agreement which, if consummated , would violate Section 7 of the
Clayton Act , as amended , 15 U.sC. 18 and Section 5 of the Federal
Trade Commission Act , as amended , 15 UB.C. 45; that said agree-
ment constitutes a violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, as amended; and that a proceeding in respect
thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint
stating its charges as follows:

I. DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Complaint, the following definitions apply:

a. The term baghouse means a system used for the filtration of
particulate matter from gas streams for environmental and safety
reasons or for the recapture of valuable particulates.

b. The term fabric air filter bag means a tubular or non-tubular
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seamed or seamless bag, varying in length, width and material
which is used within air pollution control systems called baghouses.

II. KENNECOTT CORPORATION

2- Kennecott is a corporation organized, existing and doing
business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of New York
with its principal executive offices at Ten Stamford Forum , High
Park Ridge , Stamford , Connecticut.

3. At all times relevant herein , Kennecott has been and is a
corporation whose business is in or affecting commerce within the
mcaning of the Federal Trade Commission and Clayton Acts, as
amended.

III. DORR-OLIVER INCORPORATED

4. Curtiss-Wright Corporation ("Curtiss-Wright") is a corporation
organized , existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the State of Delaware with its principal executive offices at
One Passaic St. , Wood-Ridge, New Jersey.
5. Dorr-Oliver Inc. ("Dorr-Oliver ) is a corporation organized and

doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State 
Delaware with its principal offices at 77 Havemcyer Lane, Stamford
Connecticut. Dorr-Oliver is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Curtiss-
Wright.

6. At all times relevant herein , Curtiss-Wright has been and is a
corporation whose business is in or affecting commerce within the
meaning of the Federal Trade Commission and Clayton Acts, as

amended.

IV. ACQUISITION

7. On January 29 , 1981 , Kennecott and Curtiss-Wright entered
into an agreement for the sale of Curtiss-Wright' s Dorr-Oliver
subsidiary to Kennecott for approximately $110 000 000.

v. TRADE AND COMMERCE

8. The relevant geographic market is the United States as a
wholc.
9. The relevant product market is the manufacture and sale of

fabric air filter bags.
10. Concentration in the manufacture and sale of the relevant

product is high.
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11. There are barriers to entry into the manufacture and sale of
the relevant product.

12. Both Kennecott through its Filter Media Division and Dorr-
Oliver, through its subsidiary, Nation.al Filter Media Corporation
are significant competitors in the relevant market.

VI. EFFECTS OF. THE ACQUISITION

13. The effects of the proposed acquisition may be to substantial-
ly lessen competition or tend to create a monopoly in the relevant
market enumerated in Paragraphs 7 and 8 of this Complaint in the
following ways, among others:

(a) it wil eliminate substantial actual competition between

Kennecott and Dorr-Oliver in the relevant market;
(b) it wil significantly increase the already high levels of

concentration in the relevant market;
(c) it wil further raise the barriers to entry that exist in the

relevant market;
(d) customers of fabric air filter bags may be denied the benefits

of free and open competition.

VII. VIOLATIONS CHARGED

14. The proposed acquisition set forth in Paragraph 7 , if consum-
mated, would violate Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended , 15
VB. C. , and would violate Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, as amended , 15 C. 45.

15. The agreement described in Paragraph 7 , violates Section 5 of
the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended , 15 U . C. 45.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of the proposed acquisition of Dorr-Oliver Incorporated (hereinafter
Dorr-Oliver ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Curtiss-Wright Corpo-

ration ("Curtiss- Wright"), by Kennecott Corporation (hereinafter
Kennecott"), and Kennecott having been furnished thereafter with

a copy of a draft of complaint which the Bureau of Competition
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and
which, if issued by the Commission , would charge Kennecott with
violations of the Federal Trade Commission Act and the Clayton Act;
and

Kennecott, its attorneys, and counsel for the Commission having

J - QL 3
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thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order , an
admission by Kennecott of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the
aforesaid draft of complaint , a statement that the signing of said
agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by Kennecott that the law has been violated as alleged in
such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that Kennecott has
violated the said Acts, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of sixty (60) days , now in further conformity with the
procedure prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules , the Commission
hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Kennecott is a corporation organized, existing and doing
business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of New York
with its principal executive offices at Ten Stamford Forum , High
Ridge Park , Stamford , Connecticut.
2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject

matter of this proceeding and of Kennecott, and the proceeding is in
the public interest.

ORnER

It is ordered That for the
definitions shall apply:

purposes of this order the following

1. Kennecott means Kennecott Corporation , a corporation orga-
nized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of
the State of New York, with its principal offices at Ten Stamford
Forum, Stamford, Connecticut , as we11 as its officers , employees
agents, its parents, divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates, successors

assigns , and the officers, employees or agents of Kennecott's parents
divisions, subsidiaries , affiliates, successors , or assigns.

2. Curtiss- Wright means Curtiss-Wright Corporation , a corpora-
tion organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of
the laws of the State of Delaware, with its principal offices at One
Passaic St. , Wood-Ridge , New Jersey, as well as its officers , employ-
ees , agents , it parents, divisions, subsidiaries , affiliates , successors
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assigns, and the officers, employees or agents of Curtiss-Wright'
parents, divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates, successors, or assigns.
3. Darr-Oliver means Dorr-Oliver Inc. , a corporation organized

existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Delaware and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Curtiss-Wright
with its principal offices at 77 Havemeyer Lane , Stamford, Connecti-
cut, as well as its officers employees, agents , its parents, divisions
subsidiaries, affiliates successors, assigns and the officers , employ-
ees or agents of Dorf-Oliver s parents, divisions, subsidiaries, affili-
ates, successors, or assigns.

4. Filter Media Division or FMD means all assets, properties
titles to property, interests, rights and privileges of whatever nature
tangible and intangible , including, but not limited to, all real

property, buildings, machinery, equipment, raw materials , invento-
ry, customer lists, trade names , patents, patent applications, trade-
marks , orders for purchase that are unfilled on the date of the
divestiture , and all other property of whatever description presently
owned or operated, together with all additions, replacements, and
improvements hereafter made, by the Filter Media Division of the
Kennecott Engineered Systems Company, a division of Kennecott
Corporation.
5. National Filter Media or NFM means the National Filter

Media Corporation , a subsidiary of Don-Oliver. It includes all assets
properties, titles to property, interests, rights and privileges of
whatever nature, tangible and intangible, including but not limited

, all real property, buildings, machinery, equipment, raw materi-
als, inventory, customer lists, trade names, patents, patent applica-
tions , trademarks, orders for purchase that are unfilled on the date
of the divestiture, and all other property of whatever description

presently owned or operated by NFM.
6. Relevant products means fabric air filter bags, wet filtration

media, and cages.

a. The term fabric air filter bag means a tubular or non-tubular
seamed or seamless bag, varying in length , width, and material
which is used within air pollution control systems called bag houses.

b. The term bag house means a system used for the filtration of
particulate matter from gas streams for environmental or safety
reasons or for the recapture of valuable particulate.

c. The term wet filtration media means fabric filters of any shape
used in industrial applications to separate liquids from solids.

d. The term cages means cylindrical wire mesh forms used in bag
houses as a support for fabric air filter bags.
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7. Eligible Person means any individual, corporation (including
subsidiaries thereof), partnership, joint venture , trust, unincorporat-:
d association, other business or legal entity, or any combination

thereof, ilpprovedby the Commission. Such approval shall be in the
sale discretion of the Commission.

II.

It is ordered That Kennecott shall divest absolutely and unquali-
fiedly FMD to an Eligible Person within nine months from the date
of the issuance of this order.

III.

It is further ordered That divestiture under Paragraph II shall be
in a manner which preserves the assets and business divested as a
viable competitor.

IV.

It is further ordered That, pending the divestiture of FMD
required by Paragraph II of this Order, Kennecott shall not take any
action other than in the ordinary course of business , without the
consent of the Federal Trade Commission, to diminish the value of
FMD.

It further ordered, That pending divestiture under Paragraph II
required by this order:

A. Kennecott shall operate NFM as a separately managed
subsidiary, separately maintaining its own financial books and
records, internal auditors , employees and management. Earnings
and profits of NFM shall be retained by NFM and shall not be
distributed to Kennecott or any third party as dividends or in any
other form; provided, however that ordinary dividends may 
declared by NFM and that portion of dividends due the Filter
Fabrics Company may be paid to the Filter Fabrics Company.
B. Kennecott: (1) shall exert no control over or influence on or

interfere in any way in any of the business decisions or operations of
NFM; (2) shall not cause NFM, directly or indirectly, to adopt

policies preferred, suggested, or dictated by Kennecott; (3) shall not
change NFM's existing policies or methods of operation. Further-
more , no Kennecott officer, director, employee, representative, or
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agent shall serve in any NFM position and no Kennecott officer
director, employee , representative or agent shall serve on NFM'
Board of Directors; provided, howeoer that Messrs. S. P. Felt, Jr. , P.
S. Felt, R G. McElhanney, C. B. Scobie, G. Ehinger, and W. P.
Holden may continue to serve on NFM's Board of Directors if they
provide to the Commission an executed copy ofthe affidavit attached
as Appendix I to this Order.

VI.

It is further ordered That, for a period of ten years from the date
of issuance of this order , Kennecott, its parents, divisions , subsidiar-
ies, affiliates , successors, or assigns, shall not, directly or indirectly,
acquire any stock, share capital , or equity interest in or assets used
in the manufacture of any relevant product by, any concern

corporate or non-corporate , engaged in the manufacture or sale of
any relevant product without the prior approval of the Federal

Trade Commission.

VII.

It is further ordered That Kennecott shall , within ninety days
from the date of issuance of this order, and every ninety days
thereafter until divestiture is completed , submit in writing to the
Commission a report setting forth in detail the manner and form in
which Kennecott intends to comply, is complying, and has complied
with the terms of this order and such additional information relating
thereto as may from time to time reasonably be required. All such
reports shall include a summary of contacts or negotiations with
anyone for the specified assets, the identity of all such persons, and
copies of all written communications to and from such persons. After
divestiture is completed, Kennecott shall submit in writing annual
reports showing the manner and form of compliance with this order.

VIII.

It is further ordered That for a period of ten years from the date of
issuance of this order, Kennecott shall notify the Commission at
least thirty days prior to any change in Kennecott which may affect
compliance with the obligations arising out of this consent order
such as dissolution , assignment or sale resulting in the emergence of
a successor corporation , the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, or
any other change in the corporation.
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ApPENDIX I

AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF

CITY OF

being duly sworn , hereby deposes and says:
affirm that I have read the Agreement Containing Consent

Order to which this Sworn Statement is attached , and that pending divestiture of
FMD as ordered in Paragraph II of that Agreement;

(1) I shall not cause NFM , directly or indirectly, to adopt policies or methods of
operation preferred, suggested, or dictated by Kennecott and that Kennecott shall
exert no control over or influence on or interfere in any way in , my consideration of

any of the business decisions or operations of NFM;
(2) I wil in no way, either directly or indirectly, participate in the business

decisions or operations of FMD;
(3) I wil make any reports on the business or operations of NFM to either Dorr-

Oliver or Kennecott only in writing and will simultaneously forward a copy of each

such report to the Commission.

Sworn to before me this day of 1981.

Notary PubJic

My Commission expires
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IN THE MATTER OF

COMMERCIAL CREDIT COMPANY

MODH'YING ORDER IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND TRUTH IN LENDING ACTS

Docket 2420. Decision, June 1973-Modifying Order, Sept. , 1981

This order reopens the proceeding and modifies the Commission s order issued on
June 26, 1973 (38 F.R. 20229; 82 F. C. 1841) against Dneof the nation
largest finance companies by substituting for the order in its entirety, 
modified order which deletes language requiring the company to obtain a
Personal Insurance Authorization " form from each borrower before the loan

could be completed. For the next five years, the modifed order requires the
company to give borrowers who elect to purchase insurance a notice entitled
Your Right To Cancel Insurance " and give the customer the right to cancel

credit insurance within 15 days of signing for a loan and receive a full refund
of insurance funds.

ORDER REOPENING THE PROCEEDING AND MODIFYING CEASE AND

DESIST ORDER

Upon consideration of a request by respondent to reopen the
proceeding and modify the Cease and Desist Order entered by
consent against respondent in this matter on June 26, 1973 , with the
concurrence of the Divisions of Credit Practices and Compliance, and
with the Director of the Bureau of Consumer Protection having
recommended that the requested modifications of the Order be
granted , the Commission has concluded on the basis of the foregoing
that respondent's request should be granted

It is therefore ordered That this proceeding be reopened and that
the following Modified Final Order be substituted and issued in lieu
ofthe Order entered on June 26, 1973:

MODIFIED FINAL ORDER

I. It is ordered That respondent Commercial Credit Company, it
successors and assigns , and its officers , agents, representatives an
employees , directly or through any corporation , subsidiary, divisic
or other device, in connection with the granting of consumer loa
subject to the provisions of Regulation Z , 12 C. R 226.8 (1980), aft
April 1 , 1982 12 C. R 226.17 and 226. 18 (1981), and the Truth
Lending Act , 15 U.s. c. 1601 et Beg., as amended , do forthwith ce
and desist from:

Failing, when the charges for credit life insurance anr
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credit accident and health insurance are not included in the finance
charge:

(a) To quote monthly payments, whether on the telephone, in
person, or otherwise, which exclude the cost of credit life insurance
and/or credit accident and health insurance.

(b) If monthly payments do reflect credit life insurance and/or
credit accident and health insurance , such payments may be quoted
only ifthe consumer is clearly told that:

(i) credit life insurance and/or credit accident and health insur-
ance are optional; and

(ii) the consumer s choice regarding the insurance coverage will
not be considered in respondent's approval of the consumer s credit.

2. Failing to include in the finance charge, charges for credit life
insurance and/or credit accident and health insurance written in
connection with the credit transaction unless:

(a) The insurance coverage is not required by the respondent and
is not a factor in the approval by the respondent of the extension of
credit and this fact is clearly and conspicuously disclosed in writing
to the customer; and
(b) Any customer desiring such insurance coverage gives specifi-

cally dated and separately signed affirmative written indication of
such desire after receiving written disclosure to the customer of the
cost of such insurance, as required by 12 C.F.R 226.4(a)(5) (1980) (12
C.F.R 226.4(d) (1981) after April 1 , 1982).

3. When the charges for credit
accident and health insurance are

charge:

(a) Misrepresenting, orally or otherwise, directly or by implica-

tion, that credit life and/or credit accident and health insurance are
equired as a condition for obtaining credit from respondent,
(b) Discouraging, by misrepresentation , oral or otherwise, direct-
or by implication , the declination of credit life and/or credit

,cident and health insurance.

life insurance and! or credit
not included in the finance

4. When the charges for credit life
,ident and health insurance are not
lrge, failing:

I) To grant each borrower who is covered by credit life and/or
!it accident and health insurance a period of not less than fifteen

insurance and!or credit
included in the finance
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days in which to cancel such insurance and receive a fuU refund of
insurance funds. Such canceUation period shaU begin to run on the

day that respondent delivers to the borrower the notice of "CanceUa-
tion Right" and "CanceUation Request" referred to in section (b) and
(c) of this paragraph 4. A borrower s notification to respondent of
cancellation of his or her insurance coverage shall be considered
given on the date mailed or otherwise delivered to respondent.

(b) To deliver to each borrower who is covered by credit insur-
ance a notice entitled "Your Right to Cancel Insurance." Such notice
shaU:

(i) he printed on paper of a color different from other loan
dqcuments;

(ii) be printed in print not smaUer than the print of Attachment
A hereto;

(iii) be substantiaUy similar to the content of Attachment A
hereto;

(iv) be the last document delivered to the borrower at the time of
closing together with an acknowledgement of receipt which is
specificaUy dated and separately signed by the borrower.

(c) To deliver to each borrower who is covered by credit insurance
a borrower s copy of the "CanceUation Request" which contains only
the contents of Attachment B hereto, and an envelope addressed to
respondent.
(d) To mail or personaUy deliver to each borrower covered by

credit insurance who oraUy inquires about canceUation , the notice of
canceUation right described in section (b) and the envelope described
in section (c).
(e) However, where the respondent receives a request for an

extension of credit by mail, telephone, or written communication
without personal solicitation , the provisions of this paragraph 4 shaU
not be applicable if the respondents ' printed material delivered or
made available to the customer clearly sets forth the disclosures
required by 12 C. R. 226.4(a)(5) (1980) (12 C. R. 226.4(d) (1981) after

April 1 , 1982), and also sets forth the scheduled amount of payments
both including the cost of credit and or credit accident and health
insurance and excluding the cost of credit and or credit accident and
health insurance, and which otherwise meets the requirements of 12

R. 226.8(g)(2) (1980) (12 C. R. 226. 17(g) (1981) after April 1

1982).

Failng to compute and disclose accurately the finance charge
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as required by 12 C. R. 226.4(a)(5) and 226.8(d) (1980) (12 C.
226.4(d) and 226. 18(b) and (c) (1981) after April 1 , 1982).

6. Failing to compute and disclose accurately the annual percent-
age rate to the nearest quarter of one percent as required by 12

R. 226.5(l) and 226.8(l) (1980) (12 C. R. 226.22 and 226.18 (1981)

after April 1 , 1982).
7. Failing, in any consumer loan transaction or advertisement to

make all disclosures, determined in accordance with 12 C. R. 226.4

and 226.5 (1980) (12 C. R.226.4 and 226.22 (1981) after April 1

1982) in the manner, form and amount required by 12 C. R. 226.

226. 226. , and 226. 10 (1980) (12 C.F.R. 226. 226. 226.23, and
226.24 (1981) after April 1 , 1982).

II. It is further ordered That the respondent's obligations under
the Order issued on June 26, 1973 , shall remain effective and binding
upon any of the consumer loan offices of respondent until such office
is in compliance with paragraph 4 of this modified order provided
however that all of respondent's consumer loan offices shall be in
compliance with paragraph 4 of this modified order not later than
six months from the date of service of this modified order. Each of
respondent' s consumer loan offices shall be obligated to comply with
paragraph 4 of this modified order only for tbe period of five years
following immediately after the day on which the loan office is in
compliance with such paragraph 4.

III. It is further ordered That respondent shall maintain for a
three year period, by individual consumer loan offces, records of the

total number of borrowers and the names and addresses of each
borrower who exercises his Of her right to cancel credit insurance. At
the request of the Commission staff, the respondent shall maintain
records for an additional two-year period. The records required by
this paragraph shall be available for inspection and copying by

ommission staff upon request.

IV. It is further ordered That respondent, shall not later than six
lOnths after the service of this Order upon it, deliver a copy of this
rder to Cease and Desist to all present and future personnel of
!spondent at its general offces in Baltimore and in each of its
'bsidiary or other loan offces who are engaged in the extension of
nsumer loans.

V. It is further ordered That respondent notify the Commission
hin thirty (30) days of any change in the corporate respondent
ich may affect compliance obligations with regard to the exten-
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sian of consumer loans arising out of this Order, such as dissolution
assignment, or sale resulting in the emergence of a successor
corporation , the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries or any other
change in the corporation with regard to the extension of consumer
loans which may affect compliance obligations arising out of this
Order.

VI. It is further ordered That respondent shall within two
hundred ten (210) days after service upon it of this Order, fie with
the Commission a report, in writing, setting forth in detail the
manner and form in which it has complied with this Order.
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IN THE MATTER OF

ALDENS, INC.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC" IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF

SEC. 5 OIo THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3076. Complaint, Oct. 1981-Decision, Oct. , 1981

This consent order requires , among other things , a Chicago, Ilinois mail order
house to cease, in connection with the collection of debts, improperly

contacting consumers or third parties. Except to advise consumers of legal
remedies usuaIJy taken to collect debts, respondents are prohibited from
communicating with consumers who have written the firm indicating that
they wil not pay the debt or wish no further contact regarding the debt.
Additionally, for a five year period, the order requires the insertion of a
prescribed statement in all charge account agreements , which slates that the
company will limit discussions with third parties to information necessary to
locate the consumer. The order also provides that should the Commission
promulgate a trade regulation rule applicable to respondent' s third party
contacts , compliance with that rule will be considered part of the order.

Appearan

For the Commission: Alan D. Retlkin.

For the respondent: Lawrence F Henneberger and Christopher
Smith. Arent, Fox, Kintner, Plotkin Kahn Washington , D.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act the Federal

Trade Commission , having reason to believe Aldens , Inc. , a corpora-
ion , hereinafter referred to as Aldens or respondent, has violated
he provisions of said Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a
roceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest
ereby issues its complaint stating its charges in that respect as
lIows:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent, Aldens, Inc. , is a corporation, orga-
, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of

State of Ilinois, with its principal office and only place of
tness located at 5000 West Roosevelt Road , Chicago, Ilinois.
'R. 2. Respondent is now and for some time in the past has been
larly engaged in the sale of consumer products by catalog and
t mail merchandising to consumers residing throughout the
,d States. All orders, whether for cash or credit (extended by
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respondent using its Aldens Charge Accounts), are solicited by mail
through catalogs, flyers and other direct mail literature. For its
fiscal year ending January 31 , 1980, Aldens ' sales were approximate-
ly $ 250 milion, making it the nation s fifth largest mail order
company.
PAR. 3. In the ordinary course and conduct of its business

Aldens, by its agents, representatives and employees, regularly
engages in the collection of consumer debts allegedly owed to Aldens
for the sale, on credit , of mail order consumer products as described
in Paragraph Two. Respondent maintains, and at all times men-
tioned herein has maintained , a substantial course of trade in said
business in commerce, as "commerce" is defined in the Federal
Trade Commission Act.
PAR. 4, In the ordinary course of attempting to collect the

consumer debts referred to in Paragraph Three, herein , respondent
by means of the U.S. Postal Service , has transmitted and in certain
instances continues to transmit to consumers and others not
necessarily responsible for the financial affairs of said consumers
unsolicited forms , letters and notices demanding payment or re-
questing assistance or information to aid in the collection of said
consumer debts. Copies of some of the forms used by Aldens are
attached hereto as Exhibits 1 through 14.

Typical and ilustrative, but not necessarily all inclusive , of the
statements and representations made in said forms and printed
materials are the following excerpts. 

1. Prior to accepting this for final settlement I am asking our Credit people to
determine why you have failed to discharge your obligation.

A review of your history indicates:

you receive income from (employer).

bank affjliations with (bank).

you have credit with (merchant).

Additionally, (name of a credit-reference/friend/relativeJ may be in a position to hel'
you. Of course , as we proceed we wil update and uncover current conditions.

2. I have been instructed to place your seriously past due account locally f
collection.

It is possible a local investigation will be made regarding your financial status
order to determine the most expedient means of obtaining payment in full. Y

. Excerpt numbers correspond to the numbers of the exhibits from which they are extracted.
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employer, both past and present
bureau may all be asked to report.

references , neighbors, local merchants and credit

3. Your name was given to us as a personal reference or relative when we opened
a Credit Account for (consumer s nameJ.

The terms under which payments were to be made have not been kept. Despite
numerous requests for settlement in a friendly manner , a serious past due condition
stil exists.

It is our desire to avoid the necessity of legal action in the local courts.
are writing to you.

That is why we

Perhaps a word
payment.

from you wil emphasize the gravity of this situation and result in

The above named person has an account with us which is seriously past due

Would you be interested in contacting this party regarding a loan for $ , the
total amount owed us?

If you find that you cannot grant this loan

questionnaire , please do so and return it to us.
investigative expense.

but you can complete the following
We will gladly reimburse you for any

Verified address Phone 

Place of employment 

-- 

Phone 

---

Wife s place of employment_-
Phone

Neighbor or relative where customer might be contacted by phone

memo to:

n. g. hadges (Alden s Collection Dept. Employee)
lfrom: j. 1. davis , Alden s Collection Dept. Supervisor)

Re: (Consumer s Name)

In reply to your memo stating that the above named person has ignored our efforts
:owards a friendly settement, I recommend one of the following methods for
nforcing payment.

Contact the debtor s employer to ask his assistance in obtaining payment in full

opy of this letter is being sent to the debtor to inform him of our intentions. If a full
Iffcnt is not received within the next seven days , proceed with whatever action you
sider the most appropriate and expedient.

The delivery of this letter at your place of employment indicates that you are
fully employed , and can pay your just obligations.

'lpS you don t realize the seriousness of your position.
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We don t want to cause you unnecessary embarrassment. Nevertheless , action will be
taken to collect the entire balance of $ __through your employer unless you

send a payment of $ today.

7. Before authorizing an agent in your locality to act on our behalf, I intend to ask
your employer for assistance in arranging payment of this long overdue account. I
shall contact him in approximately 10 days.

An immediate payment of $ wil eliminate the need for
employer in this matter , as well as the possibility of legal proceedings.

involving your

I advise you to act promptly, before it is too late.

8. May we ask your assistance in obtaining payment from your employee whose
name appears above?

This person has not completed payments on merchandise purchased from us

If you would be kind enough to speak to your employee about this obligation, I feel
sure it would make him realize the seriousness of the situation and help bring about
an amicable settlement.

If our customer no longer works for you , can you give us the name and address of his
present employer?

9, I sincerely hope you didn t think we were trying to unload our problems on

your shoulders when we asked you to speak to the above named person about his past
due indebtedness to Aldens.

From our long experience in the credit field, we know that a few words from the
employer usually result in the resumption of payments. Without your assistance , our
only recourse wil be to place the account with a local attorney. Since we don t want to
take such drastic action if it can possibly be avoided, anything you can do to influence
a friendly settlement wil be greatly appreciated.

If this person no longer works for you, can you give us the name and address of his
new employer?

10. From our previous communications with the Military Department, it is
evident that they, too, desire to be cooperative and he of assistance to military
personnel having financial difficulties.

Your reply and payment must be sent within the next seven (7) days. Otherwise , we
wil appeal to your Commanding Officer for assistance. Have you considered the
consequences of such action? Notice of our intention is given so that you may avoid
any unpleasantness or reflection on your record.

11. SEND $ AT ONCE, UNLESS YOU RESPOND WE WILL CONTACT YOUR
COMMANDING OFFICER. YOU OF COURSE REALIZE HE MAY ENFORCE THE PROVISIONS OF
ARTICLE 133 OR 134 OF THE UNIFORM CODE 01 MILITARY .JUSTICE.

12. We are having a serious collection problem with the customer named above
who we believe is under your command. When he opened his account in
19- , he agreed to pay $ per month. At present his account balance h

of which $ is past due.



794 FEDERAL THADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Complaint 98 F.

A substantial amount of the items purchased may have been for the support of the
serviceman s dependents.

We would greatly appreciate your discussing this matter with our customer, as we are
confident that such a discussion would result in the resumption of regular payments.

Any information you can give us regarding this man s problem and his plan for
payments wil be helpful.

13. We are wondering. . . if you received our previous letter concerning the
above named person who we believe is serving under your command.

Apparently he is experiencing financial diffculties since his Open End Credit Account
has become considerably past due - . as is evident by the data shown above.

Would you kindly arrange to have this matter called to his attention.

14. We regret very much. . . that it was necessary to contact your Commanding
Officer about your past due account.

Since the Military Department encourages a serviceman to discharge his obligations
satisfactorily, this matter wil undoubtedly be brought to your attention by your
superior offcer.

As soon as this (payment) is received, at your request, we will notify your
Commanding Officer of your agreement to settle this account.

If you fail to cooperate , we wil have no choice but to further proceed through proper
military channels.

PAR. 5. In the ordinary course and conduct of its business as
aforesaid , respondent has transmitted and in some instances con-
tinues to transmit to consumers and third parties in a number of
States thousands of copies of Exhibits 1-14 per month via the United
States Postal Service. By and through the use of Exhibits 1 , 2, 5 , 6, 7
10, 11, & 14 , respondent threatened and in some instances continues
to threaten consumers that it wil1 contact third parties (including,
but not limited to: friends , relatives, neighbors, commanding officers
employers and supervisors) in connection with its attempt to col1ect
allegedly delinquent consumer debts. By and through the use 
Exhibits 3, 4 , 8 , 9, 12 , & 13, Aldens contacted and in some instances
continues to contact such third parties. If no reply is received from
the initial third party contact, a second contact may be attempted.
(Respondent frequently made and continues to make third party
;ontacts by means of the telephone , as well.) In the course of such
)ractices, respondent frequently divulged and in some instances
ontinues to divulge to third parties the fact, substance, and details
r consumer s alleged indebtedness.
By and through the use of these acts and practices , respondent has
the past, and is in some instances presently, acting in an
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oppressive or coercive manner, thereby unfairly threatening the
jobs, reputations, emotional and mental security, and individu"l
privacy of several thousands of consumers each month.

PAR. 6. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondent , as herein
alleged, were and are all to the prejudice and injury of the public and
have constituted, and now constitute, unfair acts and practices in or
affecting commerce in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act.

Chairman Miler did not participate.
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Decision and Order 98 F.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission , having initiated an investigation
of certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof, and the respondent having heen furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the Bureau of Consumer
Protection proposed to present to the Commission for its consider-
ation and which, if issued by the Commission, would charge
respondent with violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondent, their attorneys , and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent

order, an admission by the respondent of all thc jurisdictional facts
set forth in the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the
signing of said agreement is for settlement purposes only and does
not constitute an admission by respondent that the law has been
violated as alleged in such complaint, and waivers and other
provisions as required by the Commission s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Act , and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of sixty (60) days , now in further conformity with the
procedure prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules , the Commission
hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent Aldcns , Inc. is a corporation organized , existing
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Ilinois, with its office and principal place of business located at 5000
West Roosevelt Road, in the City of Chicago , State of Ilinois.
2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject

matter of this proceeding and of the respondent , and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

ORDER

DEFINITION: For the purposes of this Order, the term colt"umer
shall mean any natural person obligated or allegedly obligated to
pay any debt.

It is ordered That respondent, Aldens, Inc. , a corporation, its
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successors and assigns, and respondent's offkers , agents , representa-
tives and employees, directly or through any corporation , subsidiary,
division or other device, in connection with the collection or

attempted collection of any consumer debt , in or affecting commerce,
as "commerce" is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, do forthwith cease and desist from:

(1) Communicating with any consumer without the prior consent
of the consumer given directly to respondent at the time of the
attempt to collect any debt, or the express permission of a court of
competent jurisdiction if:

(a) Such communication is at any unusual time or place , or a
time or place known (or which should be known) by respondent to be
inconvenient to the consumer , including the consumer s place of

employment, if respondent knows or has reason to know that the
consumer s employer prohibits the consumer from receiving such
communication; or
(b) Respondent knows the consumer is represented by an attor-

ney acting on behalf of and in the name of the consumer with respect
to such debt , and has knowledge of or can readily ascertain such
attorney s name and address; provided, however that respondent is
permitted to communicate directly with the consumer if the attorney
fails to respond, within a reasonable period of time, to a communica-
tion from respondent, or the attorney consents to direct communica-
tion with the consumer.

(2) Communicating with any consumer if the consumer has
notified respondent in writing that he or she refuses to pay the debt,
or wishes respondent to cease further communication , except:

(a) as reasonably necessary to inform the consumer that respon-
dent may invoke specified remedies which are ordinarily invoked by
respondent; or

(b) to advise the consumer that respondent wil cease further
communication.

(3) Failing to comply with the terms of the following statement
which shall appear as a contract provision in all of respondent'
charge account agreements for a period of five (5) years , beginning
no later than six (6) months after this Order becomes final:

In the course of collecting or attempting to colJect any debt arising from this charge
agreement , Aldens will not discuss or threaten to discuss my debt with any person
other than me or my attorney, without my written consent (given at the time of the
attempt to collect) unless permitted by a court. However, Aldens may contact other
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persons without mentioning any debt , if that is necessary to locate me. This provision
does not limit Aldens' right to contact its attorneys or debt collection and credit

reporting agencies , when permitted by law.

(a) This provision shall be printed clearly and conspicuously in
the same size type as are the other provisions of the agreement.
(b) The term "collecting or attempting to collect any debt " as

used in the above statement, shall not include contacts by respon-
dent:

(1) with a credit reporting agency for the purpose of reporting 

obtaining information;
(2) with a debt coJlection agency engaged or being engaged to

collect the debt in question;
(3) with any person with the written consent of the consumer

given at the time of the attempt to collect;
(4) with its own attorneys;
(5) with third persons for the purpose of acquiring location

information as provided in paragraph 3(c) of this Order; or
(6) which are reasonably necessary to effectuate a post-judgment

judicial remedy.

(c) When contacting third persons to determine the location of
the consumer ) respondent shall:

(1) request information only as to the consumer s home address
home phone number, and place of employment;

(2) identify itself and state the purpose of the contact (i, , Aldens
is trying to locate the consumer) without stating that the consumer
owes any debt; and
(3) not communicate more than once with any such person

unless it is reasonably believed to be necessary.

(d) Upon the expiration of the five (5) year period provided for in
Paragraph (3) of this Order, respondent shall continue to comply
with the terms of the statement contained in that paragraph.

It is further ordered That:

(4) In the event that the Federal Trade Commission promulgates
a valid trade regulation rule applicable to respondent's third party
contact activities, then compliance with that rule shall be deemed
compliance with Paragraph (3) of this Order.

(5) Respondent shall deliver a copy of this Order to cease and
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desist to all present and future personnel of its collection staff who
are engaged in the preparation or use of materials and procedures to
be used in connection with the training of personnel or the actual
day-to-day operation of respondent's collection activities, and shall
secure a signed statement acknowledging receipt of said Order from
each such person.

(6) Respondent shall notify the Commission at least thirty (30)
days prior to any proposed change in the respondent such as

dissolution, assignment or sale, resulting in the emergence of a
successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, or
any other change in the corporation which may affect compliance

ohligations arising out of the Order.
(7) Respondent shall, within sixty (60) days after service upon it

of this Order, file with the Commission a report, in writing, setting
forth in detail the manner and form in which it has complied with
this Order.

Chairman Miler did not participate.
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IN THE MATTER OF

COOGA MOOGA, lNG , ET AL.

MODIFYING ORDER IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SECS.
5 AND 12 OF THE I"EDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AC'l'

Docket C-2925. Order, Aug. 1978-Modifying Order, Oct. , 1981

In response to the Commission s adoption of the material connection Endorsement
Guide , this order reopens the proceeding and modifies the Commission s order
issued on August 9 , 1978 (43 FR 40804 , 92 F. C. 310) by deleting the words
any financial interest in the sale of the product or service which is the

subject of the endorsement or" from the definition of material connection
contained in Paragraph l.D. This modification relieves the petitioners of the
obligation of disclosing any financial interest they may have in the sale of an
endorsed product.

ORDER REOPENING THE PROCEEDING AND MODIFYING CEASE AND
DESIST ORDEn

Charles E. "Pat" Boone and Cooga Mooga, Inc. , (hereinafter
Petitioners ) have filed, pursuant to Hule 2.51 of the Commission

Rules of Practice, a Petition to Reopen , Modify, Alter or Set Aside
Parts of Consent Order (hereinafter "Petition ). The Petition seeks
the modification or elimination of two provisions of the Commis-
sion s Order of August 9 , 1978. The Order concerns petitioners
representations as advertisers and as endorsers , and requires them
to contribute a pro rata share to a restitution program for purchas-
ers of Acne-Statin , a product endorsed by petitioners.

The first issue raised by the Petition concerns the "material
connection" disclosure provision of Paragraph J.D. of the Order. This
provision requires petitioners, when they act as endorsers, to disclose
any financial interest in the sale of the product or service which is

the subject of the endorsement or any familial connection between
the endorser and the advertiser or its advertising agency." Petition-
ers argue that this provision unfairly discriminates against them
because no other celebrity endorser is required to disclose such
interest. Petitioners further contend that the Order provision
conflicts with the Commission s "Guides Concerning Use of Endorse-
ments and Testimonials in Advertising. " 16 GF.R Part 255 (1980).
In addition, they maintain that the material connection disclosure

requirement is harmful to small business and infringes petitioners
First Amendment rights.
The Petition does not present any evidence of changed circum-

stances regarding the familial connection portion of the material
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connection definition , nor is there any indication that the modifica-
tion of this language would be in the public interest. The Commis-
sion therefore declines to set aside or alter the requirement that
petitioners disclose familial connections with the advertiser or its
advertising agency.

The financial interest portion of the material connection definition
requires petitioners to disclose any interest in the sale of the

endorsed product. This covers situations in which the compensation
received by petitioners for the endorsement is related to the volume
of sales of the product, i. , a "share of the action." The Order does
not require petitioners to disclose remuneration if it is in the form of
a fixed sum in advance of the endorsement, or if it is based upon the
extent of the dissemination of the advertisement.
On January 16 , 1980 , the Commission promulgated its Endorse-

ment Guides. Guide 5, regarding the disclosure of material connec-

tions between advertisers and endorsers , provides:

When there exists a connection between the endorser and the seller of the advertised
product which might materially affect the weight or credibility of the endorsement
(i. , the connection is not reasonably expected by the audience) such connection must
be fully disclosed. An example of a connection that is ordinarily expected by viewers
and need not be disclosed is the payment or promise of payment to an endorser who is
an expert or well known personality, as long as the advertiser does not represent that
the endorsement was given without compensation. However, when the endorser is
neither represented in the advertisement as an expert nor is known to a significant
portion of the viewing public, then the advertiser should clearly and conspicuously

disclose either the payment or promise of compensation prior to and in exchange for
the endorsement or the fact that the endorser knew or had reasons to know or to
believe that if the endorsement favors the advertised product some benefit such as an
appearance on TV , would be extended to the endorser.

The Commission has determined that under this Guide , advertisers
are not required to disclose that celebrity endorsers are compensated
for endorsements , regardless of the method of compensation. This is
because the Commission believes that the manner in which celebri-
ties are compensated does not materially affect the weight or
credibility of an endorsement. The Commission further finds that
the adoption of the material connection Endorsement Guide consti-
tutes a change in the law regarding the obligation of celebrity

endorsers to disclose their financial interest in the sale of the

advertised product. The Commission therefore concludes that peti-
tioners have made a satisfactory showing, as required by Section 5(b)
of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 C. , that the section
of the definition of material connection pertaining to petitioners
financial interest in the sale of the advertised product should be
deleted from the Order.

Petitioners also seek relief from their obligation under the Order
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to contribute a pro rata share to the restitution program for
purchasers of Acne-Statin. This claim is based on the alleged
disparity in the Commission s treatment of petitioners versus other
endorsers subject to Commission Orders. The two other Orders cited
by petitioners are those against Gordon Cooper and against Harvey
Glass, M.D. (C-3004). The factual circumstances of these cases
differed substantially, however , from those involved in the instant
case; the cases involve disparities in inter alia the volume of sales of
the endorsed product and the remuneration received by the endors-
er. These differences amply justify the differential remedies selected
in each case. The Cooper and Glass Orders do not, therefore
constitute a change in law. Nor do any changes in fact or the public
interest warrant the alteration or elimination of petitioners ' restitu-
tion obligations.

It is therefore ordered That the proceeding is hereby reopened and
the Decision and Order issued on August 9 , 1978, in Docket No. C-
2925 is hereby modified by deleting from the definition of material
connection contained in Order Paragraph I.D. the words

, "

any
financial interest in the sale of the product or service which is the
subject of the endorsement or. " Petitioners ' request for the modifica-
tion of Paragraph II of the Order is hereby denied.

It is further ordered That the foregoing modification shall become
effective upon service of this Order.
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IN THE MATTER OF

GREAT NORTH AMERICAN INDUSTRIES, INC. , ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3077. Complaint, Oct. 19B/-Decision, Oct. , 1981

This consent order requires, among other things, two Gainesvile , Texas corpora-
tions and a corporate officer to cease representing that substantial fuel
economy can be achieved by the use of Teflon oil additives such as
Tephguard." Further, respondents are prohibited from making representa-

tions that the use of any automobile retrofit device, fuel or engine oil additive
will increase fuel economy, unless substantiated by competent scientific
evidence, and accompanied by the disclosure of any limitations on the
performance or effcacy of such products. Additionally, the Order bars claims
of government approval without written and dated authorization; prohibits
misrepresentations concerning the conclusions of product tests or sUrveys;
and requires that consumer endorsements of any product or service reflect
typical consumer experiences.

Appearances

For the Commission: Laurence M. Kahn and William Haynes,

For the respondent: Jack Paller, Katz, Paller Land Atlanta
Ga. Marshall Dooley, Dallas, Tex. , and Donald Higgenbotham

Austin , Tex.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act the Federal

Trade Commission, having reason to believe that Great North
American Industries , Inc. , a corporation , Products on the Move, Inc.
a corporation , and Patrick O. McCrary, individually and as an officer
of Great North American Industries , Inc. , and Products on the Move
Inc., hereinafter sometimes referred to as "respondents " have

violated the provisions of the said Act, and it appearing to the
Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in
the public interest, hereby issues its complaint , stating its charges in
that respect as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondents Great North American Industries,
Inc. , and Products on the Move, Inc. , are corporations organized

existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
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State of Texas with their office and principal place of business
located at 104 West Main St. , Gainesville , Texas.

Respondent Patrick O. McCrary is President of the corporate
respondents Great North American Industries , Inc. , and Products on
the Move , Inc. He formulates, directs, and controls the acts and
practices of all said corporate respondents , including the acts and
practices hereinafter set forth. His address is the same as that of said
corporations.

The aforementioned respondents cooperate and act together in
carrying out the acts and practices hereinafter set forth.

PAR. 2. Respondents are now and for sometime last past have
been engaged in the advertising, offering for sale , sale, and distribu-
tion of a product known as Tephguard (Tefguard), hereinafter
sometimes referred to as !!product " which product is advertised as a
means of improving fuel economy in automobiles. Said product is an
automobile engine oil additive. Respondents, in connection with the
marketing of said product, have disseminated , published and distrib-
uted and now disseminate, publish and distribute advertisements
and promotional materials for the purpose of promoting the sale of
said product.
PAR. 3. In the course and conduct of their said business, the

respondents have disseminated and caused the dissemination of
certain advertisements for said product through the United States
mails and by various means in or affecting commerce , as "com-
merce" is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act , including,
but not limited to, the insertion of advertisements in magazines and
newspapers with national circulations; and have disseminated and
caused the dissemination of advertisements for said product by

various means, including, but not limited to, the aforesaid media, for
the purpose of inducing and which are likely to induce, directly or
indirectly, the purchase of said product in commerce.
PAR. 4. Among the advertisements and other sales promotional

materials disseminated by respondents are the materials identified
as Exhibits A and B which are attached hereto.
PAR. 5. Through the use of the advertisements referred to in

Paragraph Four, and other advertisements and sales promotional

materials, respondents represented and now represent, directly or by
implication , that

a. Tephguard when used in a typical automobile engine will

substantially improve fuel economy;
b. under normal conditions , a typical driver can ordinarily obtain
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a fuel economy improvement which will approximate or equal
twenty-six percent when Tephguard is used in his/her automobile;
c. competent scientific tests have proven the fuel economy claims

made for Tephguard;
d. results of consumer usage, as evidenced by consumer endorse-

ments , prove that Tephguard substantially improves fuel economy;
e. the Environmental Protection Agency (E.P. ) has approved

the use of Tephguard in automobiles to improve fuel economy;
f. the consumer endorsements which appear in advertisements

and sales promotional materials for Tephguard reflect the typical or
ordinary experience of members of the public who have used
Tephguard.

PAR. 6. In truth and in fact, contrary to respondent' s representa-
tions set forth in Paragraph Five:

a. Tephguard when used in a typical automobile will not
substantially improve fuel economy;
b. under normal driving conditions, a typical driver cannot

ordinarily obtain a fuel economy improvement which will approxi-
mate or equal twenty-six percent when Tephguard is used in his/her
automobile;
c. no competent scientific tests have proven the fuel economy

claims for Tephguard;
d. results of consumer usage, as evidenced by consumer endorse-

ments , do not prove that Tephguard substantially improves fuel
economy;
e. the Environmental Protection Agency (E.P.A.) has not ap-

proved the use of Tephguard in automobiles to improve fuel
economy;
f. the consumer endorsements which appear in advertisements

and sales promotional materials for Tephguard do not reflect the
typical or ordinary experience of members of the public who have
used Tephguard.

Therefore, said advertisements and sales promotional materials
are deceptive or unfair.
PAR. 7. At the time respondents made the representations

alleged in Paragraph Five of the complaint , they did not possess and
rely upon a reasonable basis for such representations. Therefore
said advertisements and sales promotional materials are deceptive

or unfair.
PAR. 8. The advertisements referred to in

other advertisements and sales promotional

Paragraph Four and

materials represent
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directly or by implication , that respondents had a reasonable basis
for making, at the time they were made, the representations alleged
in Paragraph Five. In truth and in fact, respondents had no
reasonable basis for such representations. Therefore, said advertise-
ments and sales promotional materials are deceptive or unfair.
PAR. 9. In the course and conduct of their business, and at all

times mentioned herein , respondents have been , and now are, in
substantial competition in or affecting commerce with corporations
firms and individuals engaged in the sale of engine oil additives
gasoline additives , and automobile retrofit devices.
PAR. 10. The use by respondents of the aforesaid unfair or

deceptive statements, representations , acts and practices , directly or
by implication, has had , and now has, the capacity and tendency to
mislead members of the public into the erroneous and mistaken
belief that said statements and representations were and are true
and complete, and into the purchase of substantial quantities of
respondents' product by reason of said erroneous and mistaken
belief.

PAR. 11. The acts and practices of respondents, as herein alleged
including the dissemination of the aforesaid false advertisements

were and are all to the prejudice and injury of the public , and of
respondents ' competitors , and constituted and now constitute, unfair
methods of competition in or affecting commerce and unfair or
deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce in violation of
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act. The acts and
practices of respondents , as herein alleged, are continuing and will
continue in the absence of the relief herein requested.

Chairman Miller did not participate.
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817 Deision and Order

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of certain acts and practices of the respondents named in the caption
hereof, and the respondents having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the Bureau proposed to present to
the Commission for its consideration and which, if issued by the
Commission, would charge respondents with violations of the
Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondents and counsel for the Commission having thereaf-
ter executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission
by the respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the
aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of such
agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondents that the law has been violated as alleged
in such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by
the Commission s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondents
have violate this said Act, and that complaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and havi thereupon accepte the
execute consent ageement and plaed iuch ageement on the
publie reord for a pe of sixty (60) days, now in the further
conformity with the proedure prescribe in Section 2.34 of its Rules
the Commission hereby isues its complaint , makes the following
jurisdictional findings, and enters the following order:

1. Respondents Great North American Industries, Inc., and
Products on the Move, Inc., are corporations organized, existing, and
doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Texas,
with their principal offce and place of business at 104 West Main
St. , Gainesville, Texa. Repondent Patrick O. McCrary is an officer
of said corporations. He formulate, dirts and controls the policies,
acts and practices of sad corporations and his principal offce and
place of business is located at the above state address.
2, The Federal Trade Commission ha jurisdiction of the subject

matter of this proceeding and of the respondents and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

ORDER

Part I

It is ordred, That respondents Great North American Industries,
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Inc. ) a corporation , and Products on the Move , Inc. , a corporation
their successors and assigns, and their officers, and Patrick O.
McCrary, individually and as an officer of Great North American
Industries, Inc. , and Products on the Move, Inc. , and respondents
agents, representatives, and employees , directly or through any
corporation , subsidiary, division , or other device, in connection with
the advertising, offering for sale, sale or distribution of the engine oil
additive known as Tephguard (Tefguard) or of any other engine oil
additive containing polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) fluoropolymers
in resin or micropowder form , including, but not limited to

, !!

Teflon
Fluon," and "Halon" resins, in or affecting commerce as "com-

merce" is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith
cease and desist from representing, directly or by implication , that
such additive wil or may result in substantial fuel economy
improvement when used in an automobile, truck, recreational

vehicle , or other motor vehicle.

Part II

It is further ordered Tbat respondents Great North American
Industries, Inc. , a corporation, and Products on the Move, Inc. , a
corporation, their successors and assigns, and their officers , and
Patrick O. McCrary, individually and as an offcer of Great Nortb
American Industries, Inc. , and Products on the Move, Inc. , and
respondents' agents, representatives, and employees, directly or
through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in

connection with the advertising, offering for sale, sale or distribution
of any engine oil additive, any fuel additive, or any automobile

retrofit device as "automobile retrofit device" is defined in Section
301 of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act of 1975 , 15 VB.
2011 , in or affecting commerce as "commerce" is defined in the
Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease and desist from
representing, directly or by implication, that such additive or device
will or may result in fuel economy improvement when installed in
an automobile, truck, recreational vehicle, or other motor vehicle
unless:

(1) such representation is true; and
(2) at the time of making such representation , respondents rely

upon written results of competent, scientific testing on a chassis
dynamometer according to the then current urban dynamometer
driving schedule (40 C. R. 86, Appendix I) and the then current
highway fuel economy driving schedule (40 C. R. 600 , Appendix I)
established by the Environmental Protection Agency to substantiate
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such representation. Provided that, for any such test, respondents
may select the type of vehicle, its model year, its engine size
mileage , fuel type, and motor oil. Any break-in period used in the
testing of any engine oil additive, fuel additive, or automobile

retrofit device shall be the break-in period specified in the respon-
dents ' use directions for such additive or device; and

(3) respondents clearly and conspicuously disclose (i) any limita-
tion on the effcacy of the engine oil additive, fuel additive, or

automobile retrofit device; (ii) the characteristics of any vehicle used
in any test , including the vehicle type, vehicle model year, engine
size, mileage , and the break-in period for the engine oil additive , fuel
additive, or automobile retrofit device; and (iii) where any represen-
tation of fuel economy improvement from the use of a retrofit device,
oil additive, or fuel additive is expressed in miles per gallon, miles
per tankful, percentage, or other numerical representation , or where
the representation of the benefit from the use of such additive or

device is expressed as a monetary saving in dollars, percentage , or
other numerical representation, all advertising and other sales

promotional materials which contain the representation must also
clearly and conspicuously disclose the following disclaimer: "Re-
minder: Your actual saving may vary. It depends on the kind of
driving you do, how you drive, and the condition of your car.

Part II

It is further ordered That respondents Great North American
Industries, Inc. , a corporation , and Products on the Move, Inc., a
corporation, their successors and assigns, and their officers, and
Patrick O. McCrary, individually and as an officer of Great North
American Industries, Inc., and Products on the Move, Inc. , and
respondents' agents , representatives, and employees, directly or

through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in

connection with the advertising, offering for sale , sale or distribution
of any product or service in or affecting commerce , as " commerce" is

defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease
and desist from:

a. representing, directly or by implication, any performance

characteristic of any product or service, other than any representa-
tion covered by Part II of this order concerning any engine oil
additive, any fuel additive, and any automobile retrofit device as
automobile retrofit device" is defined in Section 301 of the Energy

Policy and Conservation Act of 1975, 15 V. C. 2011 , unless , at the
time of making the representation, respondents possess and reason-
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ably rely upon a reasonable basis which substantiates such represen-
tation. For . any representation of any performance characteristic of
any product, other than any representation covered by Part II of this
order concerning any engine oil additive, any fuel additive, or any
automobile retrofit device as "automobile retrofit device" is defined
in Section 301 of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act of 1975 , 15

C. 2011, such reasonable basis must consist of competent
scientific evidence;
b. representing, directly or by implication, that any federal

state, or local governmental agency has approved, in any manner
any product or service unless respondents possess, at the time of
making such representation, written and dated authorization from
such governmental agency that such representation may appear in
advertising or sales promotional materials for the specific purpose

for which such representation is used in the advertising or sales
promotional materials.

. Provided that this paragraph shall not be construed to prohibit
respondents from directly representing that they have tested any
product or service in accordance with test procedures established by
any federal, state , or local governmental agency so long as such
representation is otherwise in compliance with the provisions of this
order;

c. representing, directly or by implication , that any consumer
endorsement of any product or service which appears in advertising
or sales promotional materials reflects the typical experience of
consumers with such product or service unless such representation is
true;

d. misrepresenting, in any manner the , purpose content, or
conclusion of any test or survey pertaining to ny product or service.

Part IV

It is further ordered That respondents Great North American
Industries, Inc. , a corporation, and Products on the Move, Inc. , a
corporation, their successor and assigns, and their officers, and
Patrick O. McCrary, individually and as an officer of Great North
American Industries, Inc. , and Products on the Move, Inc. , and
respondents' agents , representatives, and employees, directly Or
through any corporation, subsidiary, division, Or other device, in

connection with the advertising, offering for sale, sale or distribution
of any product or service in or affecting commerce, as commerce
defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease
md desist from failng to maintain the following accurate records



GREAT NORTH AMERICAN INDUSTRIES, INC., ET AL. 833

817 Decision and Order

which may be inspected by Commission staff members upon fifteen
(15) days ' notice: copies of and dissemination schedules for all
advertisements, sales promotional materials, and post-purchase
materials; all documents which substantiate, contradict, or other-
wise relate to any claim which is a part of the advertising, sales
promotional materials, or post-purchase materials disseminated by
respondents directly or through any business entity; copies of all
documents generated by the requirements of Part V of this order.
Such documentation relating to advertising shall be retained by
respondents for a period of three (3) years from the last date any
such advertising, sales promotional material, or post-purchase
material was disseminated. Documentation relating to Part V of the
order shall be retained by respondents for a period of three (3) years
from the last date Exhibit C was disseminated.

Part V

It is further ordered, That respondents shall forthwith distribute a
copy of this order to all operating divisions of said corporations , and
to all present and future personnel, agents, or representatives

having sales, advertising or policy responsibilties with respect to the
subject matter of this order and that respondents shall secure from
each such person a signed statement acknowledging receipt of such
order.

Respondents shall also, within thirty (30) days of the date this

order is served upon them , distribute, via first class mail, a copy of
Exhibit C and a copy of this Agreement Containing Consent Order to
Cease and Desist to each and every individual or other entity that
has purchased from them , through one purchase or through a series
of purchases, more than twelve (12) cans of Tephguard. Respondents
shall also , at least five (5) days prior to filing any order or series of
orders which individually or collectively indicate that more than
twelve (12) cans of Tephguard have been ordered by any individual
or other entity, distribute , via first class mail or any faster means , a
copy of Exhibit C and a copy of this Agreement Containing Consent
Order to Cease and Desist to each and every such individual or other
entity.

Exhibit C and the envelope containing it shall be the corporate
stationery of one of the corporate respondents. The envelope
containing Exhibit C shall contain no marking other than name and
return address of that corporate respondent, the name and address
of the individual or other entity purchasing or ordering Tephguard
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and the words .. IMPORTANT NOTICE " conspicuously disclosed on the
front of the envelope.

Part VI

It is further ordered That the corporate respondents notify the
Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in
the corporate respondents such as dissolution, assignment, or sale
resulting in the emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or
dissolution of subsidiaries or any other change in the corporation
which may affect compliance obligations arising out of the order.

Part VII

It is further ordered That the individual respondent named herein
promptly notify the Commission of the discontinuance of his present
business or employment. In addition , for a period of five years from
the effective date of this order, the respondent shall promptly notify
the Commission of each affiliation with a new business or employ
ment. Each such notice shall include the respondent's new business
address and a statement of the nature of the business or employment
in which the respondent is newly engaged as well as a description of
respondent's duties and responsibilities in connection with the
business or employment. The expiration of the notice provision of
this paragraph shall not affect any other obligation arising under
this order.

Part VII

It is further ordered That the respondents shall , within sixty (60)
days after service upon them of this order , and also one (1) year
thereafter, file with the Commission a report, in writing, setting
forth in detail the manner and form in which they have complied
with this order.

Chairman Miler did not participate.

EXHIBIT C

Dear Tephguard Customer:

I am enclosing for your information a copy of an Agreement and
Consent Order entered into by Great North American Industries
Products on the Move , myself and the Federal Trade Commission.

The Agreement and Consent Order, as stated in the Agreement
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itself, is not an admission that any law enforced by the Federal
Trade Commission has been violated, but, rather, sets forth certain
requirements for any future advertising of Tephguard that Great
North American Industries, Products on the Move, and I must
follow. These requirements affect you also in the sense that they
represent the views of the Federal Trade Commission on how

Tephguard should be advertised in the future. I thus encourage you
to closely review the enclosed document.

Your continued confidence in our line of products is appreciated.

Very truly yours

Patrick O. McCrary, President
Great North American Industdes , Inc.

and Products on the Move, Inc.
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IN THE MATTER OF

BALL-MATIC CORPORATION, INC., ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF

THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3078. Complaint, Oct. 29, 1981-Decision, Oct. 29, 1981

This consent order requires , among other things, an Orange, California corporation
and corporate officer to cease representing that the use of the "Ball.Matic" or
any similar retrofit device wil result in substantial fuel economy improve-
ment. Further , respondents are prohibited from making representations that
the use of any retrofit device or product wil result in an energy savings,

unless substantiated by competent scientific evidence. In addition, where any
claim or characterization pertaining to energy savings is made, respondents
are barred from making any endorsements without written and duted

authorization, and prohibited. from making misrepresentations concerning
the purpose, content or conclusion of any test or survey.

Appearances

For the Commission: Laurence M. Kahn and William Haynes.

For the respondent: Richard Barich, Los Angeles, Calif.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal
Trade Commission , having reason to believe that Ball-Matic Corpo-
ration , Inc. , a corporation, and Lonnie W. Smith, individually and as
an offcer of Ball-Matic Corporation, Inc., hereinafter sometimes
referred to as "respondents," have violated the provisions of the said
Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in
respect thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its
complaint , stating its charges in that respect as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Ball.Matic Corporation, Inc. is a
corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of California, with its offce and
principal place of business located at 1336 West Collins, Orange,
California.

Respondent Lonnie W. Smith, is President of the corporate
respondent Ball-Matic Corporation, Inc. He formulates, directs, .and
controls the acts and practices of said corporate respondent, includ-
ing the acts and practices hereinafter set forth. His address is the
same as that of said corporation.
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The aforementioned respondents cooperate and act together In
carrying out the acts and practices hereinafter set forth.

PAR. 2. Respondents are now and for sometime last past have
been engagd in the marketing, advertising, offering for snle, sale,
and distrihution of a product variously known as the Bnll-Matic, the
Ball-Matlc Gas Saver Valve and the Gas Saver Valve, hereinafter
sometimes referred to as "product " which product is advertised as a
means of improving fuel economy in automobiles. Said product is an
automobile retrofi device as "automobile retrofit device" is defined
in Section 301 of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act of 1975, 15
U.s.C. 2011. Respondents, in connection with the marketing of said
product, have disseminated, published and distributed and now
disseminate, publish and distribute advertisements and promotionAL
material for the purpose of promoting the sale of said product.
PAR. 3. In the course and conduct of their business, the respon-

dents have disseminated or caused the diasemination of certain
advertisements for said product through the United States mail and
by various means in or affecting commerce, as "commerc" is
defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, Including but not
limited to, the Insertion of advertisements In magaslnes I1nd
newspapers with national circulations; and have dlasemlnated or
caused the dissemination of advertisements for said prouct by
various means, including but not limited to the aforesaid media, for
the purpose of Inducing and which I1re likely to Induce, directly 01'
indirectly, the purchase ofsald product In commerce.
PAR. 4. Among the advertisements and other sales promotional

materials diasemlnated or caused to be disseminated by repondents
are the materials Identified lI Exhibits A-I which are attached
hereto.
PAR. 5. Through the use of the advertisements referred to ill

Paragraph Four, and other advertisements and sales promotional
materials, repondents repreented and now repreellt, directl or by
implication, that

a. the Ball-Matlc when installed In a typical automobile wil
signifcantly improve fuel economy;
b. under normal conditions, a typical driver can ordinarily obtain

a fuel ecnomy Improvement which wil approximate or equal four
miles per gallon when the Ball-Matic is installed In his/her
automobile;
c. competent scientifc tests prove the fuel ecnomy claims made

for the Ball-Matic;
d. results of consumer usa, liS evidence by consumer endorse-
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ments , prove that the Ball-Matic significantly improves fuel econo-
my;
e. the consumer endorsements which appear in said advertise

ments and sales promotional materials reflect the typical or ordi-
nary experience of members of the public who have used the Ball-
Matic.

PAR. 6. At the time respondents made the representations
alleged in Paragraph Five of the complaint, they did not possess and
rely upon a reasonable basis for such representations. Therefore
said advertisements and sales promotional materials are deceptive

or unfair.
PAR. 7. In truth and in fact, contrary to respondents ' representa-

tions in Paragraph Five:

a. the Ball-Matic when installed in a typical automobile will not
significantly improve fuel economy;
b. under normal driving conditions, a typical driver cannot

ordinarily obtain a fuel economy improvement which will approxi-
matc or equal four miles per gallon when the Ball-Matic is installed
in his/her automobile;
c. no competent scientific tests prove the fuel economy claims for

the Ball-Matic;
d. results of consumer usage, as evidenced by consumer endorse-

ments , do not prove that the Ball-Matic significantly improves fuel
economy;
e. the consumer endorsements which appear in said advertise-

ments do not represent the typical or ordinary experience of
members of the public who have used the Ball-Matic.

Therefore, said advertisements and sales promotional materials
are deceptive or unfair.

PAR. 8. The advertisements referred to in Paragraph Four and
other of respondent' s advertisements and sales promotional materi-
als represent, directly and by implication , that respondents had a
reasonable basis for making, at the time they were made, the

representations alleged in Paragraph Five. In truth and in fact
respondents had no reasonable basis for such representations.
Therefore, said advertisements and sales promotional materials are
deceptive or unfair.

PAR. 9. In the course and conduct of their business, and at all
times mentioned herein, respondents have been , and now are, in

substantial competition in or affecting commerce with corporations
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firms and individuals engaged in the sale of automobile retrofit
devices.
PAR. 10. The use by respondents of the aforesaid unfair or

deceptive statements, representations, acts and practices , directly or
by implication , has had, and now has, the capacity and tendency to
mislead members of the public into the erroneous and mistaken
belief that said statements and representations were and are true
and complete, and into the purchase of substantial quantities of
respondents' product by reason of said erroneous and mistaken
belief.

PAR. 11. The acts and practices of respondents , as herein alleged
including the dissemination of the aforesaid false advertisements

were and are all to the prejudice and injury of the public and of
respondents ' competitors , and constituted and now constitute, unfair
methods of competition in or affecting commerce and unfair or
deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce in violation of
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act. The acts and
practices of respondents, as herein alleged , are continuing and will
-continue in the absence of the relief herein requested.

Chairman Miller did not participate.
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